LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF MANITOBA
Tuesday, 8 June, 1982

Time — 8:00 p.m.
SUPPLY - EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN, P. Eyler: The Committee
will come to order. We're considering the Estimates of
the Executive Council, Item 1.(a) Premier and Presi-
dent of the Council's Salary.

The Leader of the Opposition.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, | think when we
adjourned at 4:30 we were talking about the large
projects; the potash, aluminum, the Hydro Inter-Tie.
We hadn't got around to Manfor. We were talking
about the allegations that the First Minister and his
colleagues had made before the election, of course,
aboutresource giveaways. We were seeking to obtain
from the First Minister any supportive evidence that
he might be able to adduce in support of his proposi-
tion over the last year, year-and-a-half, when he was
Leader of the Opposition that in fact the negotiations
undertaken by the previous government represented
in any way, shape, or form resource giveaways.

Thus far, we have been, if | may so, singularly
unsuccessful in obtaining from the First Minister any
evidence, real or imaginary, to support the proposi-
tion of resource giveaways. We have been asking
questions about the potash mine and we find that the
concerns that were outlined by the negotiators on
behalf of the previous government are the same con-
cerns that the present government has. We presume
that they are assiduously negotiating those concerns
with the company, which is what we would have been
doing, and tryingto bring the agreement to asuccess-
ful conclusion, if indeed that is possible now, given
the factthat Saskatchewan has returned to normality
from 11 years of socialist governmentand it's going to
make it much more difficult. Without being facetious
at all, itis going to make it much more difficult for the
Province of Manitoba to negotiate a potash mine in
Manitoba because of the attitude of the new Sas-
katchewan Government, which will be one, one can
only presume, of pro-development rather than inhibit-
ing development for the sake of the greater glory of
Sask Potash or one of the Crown corps. or, as | under-
stand from the paper, the Crowns as they call them out
there. They have a term in Britain; the Labour Gov-
ernment in Britain got to have so many of them that
they had a peculiar term for them over there as well,
because they become the play things of socialists
when they get into office from time to time.

So we had gone through IMC and we found that
there werereally noresourcegiveaways in IMC, other
than the ones that had been previously identified.
That's confirmed as well by comments made by the
Minister of Mines and Energy in previous debates.

We were on Alcan, trying to ascertain from the First
Minister some identification from him as to what
resource giveaway was involved in the negotiations
by the previous government with respect to Alcan. |
hear a voice from the left saying, Hydro. It's not only
my figurative and real left, but from the hard Left,
identified | presume as the Attorney-General. He says,
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Hydro, but it's strange that nobody from Hydroidenti-
fied Alcan as being a bad deal for the Province of
Manitoba. When Hydro were before the Committee
—(Interjection)— Well, for the benefit of my honour-
able friend, so that he will be aware of his facts, | ask
himtoreferto the Memorandum on Alcan that was left
by the previous Minister, Mr. Craik, for the benefit of
the new Minister, the Minister of Mines and Energy,
and he will explain - if he hasn't already shown itto the
First Minister, he should - he will explain that the
Hydro Power Agreement was being negotiated by
Hydroandwastobesettiedatthe Tablealongwiththe
other negotiationsthatwere going on. My honourable
friend can shake and shutter and shimmy and every-
thing he wants, butindeed if he wants me to table that
Memorandum, | would be happy to do it. | can put all
question on that to an end by tabling the Memoran-
dum. —(Interjection)— | will table any memorandum
that's in our possession in order to maintain the truth,
because thatseemsto be a difficult proposition every
time the Minister of Mines and Energy gets into the
debate. | am merely suggesting that the First Minister
might perhaps take a little counsel before he makes
statements from his seat to the effect that Hydro had
nothing to say about the power arrangement that was
to be negotiated with Alcan, because he will find that
the contrary was quite the case.

So we find from interrogation of the First Minister
that he sees no resource giveaway in the Alcan nego-
tiations up to November 30th, except the takeover
provision at the end of 35 years, which seem to be a
preoccupation of the Minister of Mines and Energy. Of
course, it raises thequestioninthe minds of everyone,
two questions; | think that deserves an answer in the
course of this debate and my honourable friend the
First Minister has talked around the point, but has
really not talked on the point.

One ofthe preconditions for Alcan negotiating with
the then government of Manitobawasthatthey would
have the ability to invest in the next Hydro Plant in
Manitoba; namely, the Limestone Plant, for approxi-
mately the amount of production from that plant that
would be needed for their purposes, and that would
involve about 400 megawatts a day on a Plant that's
maximum rating is somewhere in the area of 1200
megawatts. The then government of Manitoba saw
that as no great objection to negotiations with the
Aluminum Company of Canada, nor did Manitoba
Hydro atthattime. They couldseenothing but benefit
accruing forthat matter to the ratepayers of Manitoba.

So negotiations proceeded on that basis, and of
course, one of the logical questions that any lawyer
worth his salt would be concerned about in a legal
negotiation of that type, is what would happen at the
end of theterm; namely, aboutrecapture of the Plant,
if indeed that was to be necessary, because that's
what lawyers are payed to do, to anticipate ahead,
whether five days, five weeks, five months, five years,
35 years or whatever the case may be. That was stillin
negotiation, but as | have said not a matter of great
moment, because what was of greater concern was, of
course, the arrangementbetween Alcan and the Prov-
ince of Manitoba and Manitoba Hydro to first of all
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securethePlantandthen toresolvethese otherrecap-
ture matters and so on in the course of the further
negotiations, which raises of course theveryinterest-
ing question.

My honourable friends said in their election docu-
mentthatthey werenotinterestedin, and infactwere
fundamentally opposed to Alcan being allowed to
purchase. They used to use the word “give” on the
partofthe Province of Manitoba; Manitobais going to
“give” part of Limestone to Alcan and the factwas, cf
course, that Alcan wanted to purchase part of the
operating plant at Limestone and that the up-front
money that would be required to be raised, 600, 700,
probably now $800 million would be put up by that
company as partof the quid pro quo for that negotia-
tion and indeed as recently as a week or two ago
Manitoba Hydro - and in fact, as | mentioned earlier,
the Chief Financial Officer of Manitoba Hydro said in
effect, anybody whoiswillingtoputup $700 million or
$800 million up front instead of the ratepayers of
Manitoba Hydro, that will be of benefit to the ratepay-
ers which is such an elementary —(Interjection)—
The Minister of Mines and Energy from his seat says,
depending upon the buy back 35 years down theroad.
Well, I'm coming to that point which seems to be
almost a paranoid preoccupation with the Minister of
Mines and Energy. —(Interjection)— | pray God,
we'reallgoingtobeherein 35years,butinthiskind of
an agreement, the first thing that's most important is
the firstyear and let's get that settled first. Let'sgetthe
agreement signed first.

The question that arises out of that, which is of
course self-evident and elementary, is this: that if the
NDPisinfact, astheysaidintheir election document,
not prepared to negotiate with Alcan on the sale of
partof the Hydro plant for which Alcan would putup
up-front money of anywhere between $600 million
and $800 million, then what gives vitality to the con-
cern just a matter of 60 seconds ago, a voice by the
Minister of Mines and Energy about buy back, because
under their terms there wouldn't have to be any buy
back? If the NDP is not prepared to sell, then there's
no requirement for any buy back.

So, | take it by whatever logic is available that if the
Minister of Mines and Energy is so concerned about
buy back that he mustthen -and| congratulate him on
thisfactifitisthecaseandthe First Minister - he must
have abandoned the position thatthe NDP will notsell
part of the Limestone Plant to Alcan because why
would one be worried about buy back if, indeed, no
part of the Plant is to be sold.

So, | want really at the outset of these proceedings
tonight, Mr. Chairman, to get established on the
recordifwecan, firstand foremost,istheNewDemo-
cratic Party Government of this province going to
stand by the solemn undertaking that it made in its
rhetorical election brochure that it would under no
circumstances sell any partof the Limestone Plant to
Alcan or, indeed, is the alternative the case, and |
supremely hope it is the case thatthe government has
gotten off its ideological high horse and is now pre-
paredto deal in good faith with Alcan on their precon-
dition for coming to Manitoba, which was that they
wanted to purchase part of the plant.

Now, Mr. Chairman, | read to the Committee this
afternoonthe mostrecent publicstatementthat| have
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seen from the Annual Report to employees, 1981,
wherein Alcan says that it certainly hasn’t given up its
precondition about buying part of the plant and very
simply we want to find out from the First Minister
tonight, not from the Minister of Energy and Mines,
but from the First Minister who is the head of the
government, is it a fact now in Manitoba, and | will
cheertotheraftersifitis, thatthe NDP Government of
Manitoba has abandoned its election rhetoric about
being opposed to the sale of Limestone or any part
thereof to Alcan and is now prepared to deal realisti-
cally with Alcan on the basis of the potential sale of
partofthat plant in orderto getthe plant in Manitoba?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Premier.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, it seems to
me that again that we're into the very similar subject
matter we were on to this afternoon. January 29th of
this year, ajoint statement was issued by the Govern-
ment of the Province of Manitoba and by Alcan indi-
cating that the parties agreed to further the negotia-
tions without precondition. Wehaveour policy position
and views pertaining to the ownership; Alcan, of
course, have their views as well, but both parties in
good faith agreed to proceed without precondition.
Soindeed, if the Leader of the Opposition is suggest-
ing that we have in some way or another given up a
position that we had earlier, then indeed on the same
basis Alcan has given up their earlier position because
the Joint Review Agreement of the two parties was to
proceed without precondition.

It seems the Leader of the Opposition has not yet
been able to come to grasp with that simple elemen-
tary fact. It was mentioned on two occasions earlier
this afternoon thatthereisajoint review, thatthejoint
review isnow proceedingwithoutprecondition onthe
partofeitherthe Governmentofthe Province of Mani-
tobaoron the part of Alcan. So there is a willingness,
obviously, on the part of both parties to proceed in a
positive and a constructive manner towards attempts
to ascertain whether an agreement can entered into
that will be satisfactory and fair to both parties.

I mentioned earlier, | expected Alcan will negotiate
as firmly as they can on behalf of the interests of their
shareholders. | would expect them to do that. | would
be surprised if Alcan did not attempt to strike the best
possible transaction on behalf of their shareholders.
On the other hand, let me say to the Leader of the
Opposition, the shareholdersin the Province of Mani-
toba expect no less fromthe Government of the Prov-
ince of Manitoba.

Iwasjustallittle surprised by some of the haphazard
attitude that the Leader of the Opposition was demon-
strating a few moments ago, the buy back. It is my
understanding, forinstance, atthe present time Hud-
son Bay Mining and Smelting is attempting to sell
their Hydro interest back to the Government of the
Province of Saskatchewan. In fact, they are required
to do so; book value, $10 million. What is Hudson Bay
Mining and Smelting asking? One hundred million
dollars. The matter is before the courts. Ten times the
value of the book value.

Now, it doesn't require very much imagination on
thepartofany memberin this Chamber, including the
Leaderof the Opposition, torecognize thatin 35 years
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time we could indeed be confronted on the basis of
the reference to market value at a claim which could
be anywherefrom$10billionto$15billion. Thatisthe
kind of transaction that the Leader of the Opposition
would have had Manitobans committed to if | am to
understand his remarks this evening and his earlier
remarks.

The Leader of the Opposition has said, well, what
are the other concerns? Mr. Deputy Chairman, with-
out dealing with other concerns, | suggest that acon-
cern of $10 billion to $15 billion is ample concern
insofar as potential giveaway. The Leader of the
Opposition made some comment, but | am only deal-
ing with the first year, we won't be around here 35
years from now; we may not be around here 35 years
from now. Mr. Chairman, we are not governing only
for the present period of time without any regard
whatsoever to the quality of life, to the legacy that we
leavebehindinsofaras ourchildren and ourchildren’s
children. | am concerned about the bill that future
generations will be required to pick up, Mr. Deputy
Chairman, in the Province of Manitoba, and | think |
would be less than responsible if | did otherwise. | do
not believe that Manitobans expect us todo other than
to protect not only the interests of present Manitoba,
but to have some concern insofar as the lot of those
that follow us in the years that lie ahead. So, if the
Leader of the Opposition wants to know, the basic
concernimmediately is the question of the buy back.

Leaving all that aside, Mr. Deputy Chairman, the
Minister of Energy and Mines has been working con-
scientiously and at length. The reports that | have
received and | think the clear message that is being
received is that there are constructive negotiations
that are under way to ensure that there is a satisfac-
tory agreement that is signed. An agreement, Mr.
Deputy Chairman, that when signed, we can look for-
ward with our heads high, not an agreement that is
entered into asaresult of expediency, notenteredinto
because of arush and ahaste, regardless of theadvice
of advisers, before an election campaign.

I don't like to get into that area, but members have
mentioned the CFl situation. Well, Mr. Deputy Chair-
man, wedidn'tforget. | know who forgotthat they had
signed the original agreement; | know whoforgotthat.
Mr. Deputy Chairman, | want to say this, that the
Churchill Forest Industry giveaway is the major
giveaway that has occurred in the history of the Prov-
ince of Manitoba. | know, Mr. Deputy Chairman, and
so do all other Manitobans, who was responsible,
what government was responsible pertaining to the
Churchill Forest Industry giveaway in the Province of
Manitoba. Manitobans know that. Monies were paid
out on the basis there was no other legal alternative;
on the basis of advice received by a present Justice of
the Court of Queen’'s Bench at the present time.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, certainly we are not going to
enter into any transactions of that nature if | can avoid
it. It may be that members across the way are not so
concerned and, Mr. Deputy Chairman, . . .

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Order please.
HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, we are pro-

ceeding. We intend to proceed constructively and
positively. We would like economic development as
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much as anyone else in this Chamber in the Province
of Manitoba. Mr. Deputy Chairman, members across
the way would seem to suggest that we have some
ideological hangup. We have no ideological hang-up.
Our only hang-up is that there be a fair, substantial
and reasonable transaction benefiting the lot of Man-
itobanstodayandthelot of Manitoban tomorrow, and
not to sign a deal as a result of political expediency.
—(Interjection)— | know the Member for Sturgeon
Creek doesn't understand that because it just isn't his
way of thinking.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, while | am on my feet | would
like to make some comment on the entire process
involving Tantalum as a demonstration of the clear
distinction between the philosophy and the approach
of the government and the party across the way. | had
the Profit and Loss Statement here before 5:30; | can
obtain it again, but the 1978-1981 Profit and Loss
Statement indicates profits of some $21 million, $22
million.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, it may interest you to know
that the previous Conservative Government in the
Province of Manitoba did not take up a 50 percent
option pertaining to that; they remained with a 25
percent interest, but they could have had an opportu-
nity to have enjoyed a 50 percent interest in regardto
Tantalum. Mr. Deputy Chairman, in two years of cash
profit, 1978-1979, the cost of $6 million in order to
have purchased that option would have been paid for.

So, Mr. Deputy Chairman, | invite comment as to
why Manitobans, after hearing the evidence and the
evidence was presented, determined that, yes, the
previous Conservative Governmentin the Province of
Manitoba indeed was responsible for gross negli-
gence insofar as the handling of the affairs of the
people of the Province of Manitoba. Tantalum, Mr.
Deputy Chairman, is Exhibit No. 1 in that respect,
insofar as the past five years.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, | have not, and thisis one of
the problems of this kind of debate, because | have not
invited to go back and to refight the election cam-
paign, refight 1977, 1978, 1979, 1980, 1981, indeed to
go back earlier. —(Interjection)— In 1968, yes 1968,
but it does appear to be some kind of preoccupation
by members across the way. | do not understand this
preoccupation because surely the economic circum-
stances that are confronting Canadians as a whole,
and Manitobans as a whole, surely demands that we
look forward; that we develop policies that are positive
and constructive in order to deal with the issues of job
creation, production growth; the problems of our
small and medium sized business people; working
men and women in the Province of Manitoba. These
are the concerns that the present administration is
doubly concerned about invery hardandvery difficult
circumstances. | know indeed that members across
the way in the final year or two, the final year particu-
larly of their administration were also confronted with
the impact of the international recession. But those
are the problems we ought to be contending with.

We are, Mr. Deputy Chairman, otherwise we would
not be working, for example, on the very subject mat-
ter that we are discussing at this point so construc-
tively and with a great deal of time being consumed by
my Minister responsible for Energy and Mines and
other Ministers that are involved in regard to the
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Committee that is charged with the responsibility of
dealing with the so called mega projects. It'sconsum-
ing a great deal of their time because we would like
those projects to proceed, but those projects to pro-
ceed on terms that will be fair, terms that will be reas-
onable, not only on behalf of the companies that are
involved, but terms that will not breach our trust and
our responsibility to the people of the Province of
Manitoba.

HON. S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, | find myself in agree-
ment with the First Minister in that | see no particular
advantage in going back into 10, 15, 20 years ago, as
he is wont to do, and talk about CFl and so on. | could
stand up in this House, and haveresisted the tempta-
tion to do so, and talk about how the government of
which he was a member frittered away $5 million, $4
million to $600 million in Manitoba Hydro, docu-
mented by the Tritschler Report for all time to see.
Thatis there as well and I'm not wasting the time of the
Committee tonight talking about that. The greatest
act of negligence on the part of any public administra-
tion in the history of the Province of Manitoba commit-
ted by an administration of which my honourable
friend was amember and the electorate - one may say
on his terms - spoke in 1977 rather vividly about that as
well. | agree that there is no particular purpose to be
served in that tonight. | wasonly trying to engage the
honourable member’'s attention as far back as
November of 1981 where he talked about resource
giveaways and hasn’'t been ableto document onetittle
of evidence about resource giveaways at all.

My honourable friend has at least graduated in law
and works under the name of being a lawyer. My
honourable friend will be aware that a buy-back provi-
sion, which is important in any agreement of this
natureandsoon-I'm notdenying theimportance of it
-butit'soneelementin an overallagreementthathas
be arrivedat. When | said, without having - | don't try
to put words into my honourable friend's mouth and |
wish he would resist the temptation to put words into
my mouth, usually not with the language that | would
use in any event - to try to suggest that I'm trying to
denigrate the point of a buy-back. | merely say that if
thereistobe abuy-back, then therehastobeasalein
the first place. If there has to be a buy-back, then,
presumingthereis asale, my honourable friendsthen
| take it tonight for the first time are clearly on the
record saying that they are prepared to sell part of
Limestone to Alcan. If they are, | cheer to the rafters
because that was the original basis on which Alcan
came to Manitoba; that was their precondition; that
remains in the statement that { read to the House this
afternoon, their report to their employees which by
the way, Mr. Chairman, is dated May of 1982.

Alcan is saying that these modernization and pro-
duction expansion strategies predicated on our
ownership of hydro-electric power stations remain
intact. That's the condition on which they came to
Manitoba and | can only deducein the absence of a
denial from the First Minister that the government -
and | congratulate them for it - have come to their
senses and are preparedtosay, yes. We are prepared
to negotiate the sale of Limestone even though the
phony rhetoric that we used in our election material
said the opposite, and | wouldn't fault them for it. Do
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you know why, Mr. Chairman? Because the rhetoric
they used during the election was wrong headed and
it was contrary to the public interest of the people of
this province.

So if my honourable friends with their preoccupa-
tion with buy-back, which can only presume if you're
going to buy back something, it must presumein the
first instance thatyou've soldit. Ifthat's the case and
my honourable friends are prepared to sell a portion
of Limestone, | say, hurrah, because then that means
that they're getting on with the negotiations in a rea-
sonable way. What were the words that the First Minis-
ter used? Policies that are constructive for the people
of Manitoba. That would be a constructive policy,
properly negotiated always, and the buy-back provi-
sion is important of course, but you've got to ensure
first of all that you've got the company in the province,
owning part of the facility which is their precondition
before you can buyitback.lamonlytrying to putitin
that sequential order which any lawyer worth his salt,
if | may use that expression, is aware of.

The Minister of Mines and Energy doesn't suffer
from the disability, if | may use that term, of being a
lawyer, nor from some of the benefits of that profes-
sion so he would be well advised, | would think in this
debate, to listen rather than to participate.
—(Interjection)— Yes. Well, my honourable friend is
saying now that he's listening to the former Vice-
Chairman of Manitoba Hydro whom he and his gov-
ernment saw fit to fire from that position in Manitoba
Hydro. So that probably says more about their opin-
ionofMr. Scottthananythingthatl could say. | regard
him as one of the best counsel in Manitoba. They saw
fitto fire him from ManitobaHydro, to put one of their
hacks on in his place. Now, so much for that.

Maybe, they'd like to tell me from across the way
who is the current Vice-Chairman? Who are some of
these learned officials that the NDP put on the Mani-
toba Hydro Board? We had a mixture of business
people and representives-on it. We had a Chairman of
Manitoba Hydro who was probably one of the best
Chairman of a utility across this country and my hon-
ourable friends saw fit to fire him and put on one of
their political friends as Chairman. Well, we all know
patronage when we see it.

Kris Kristjanson took on Manitoba Hydro's
appointmentas Chairmanasa public duty, asapublic
responsibility. Of course, Mr. Chairman, my honour-
able friends opposite laugh and gibe at the name of
Kris Kristjanson, who was a professional engineer and
economist, a Ph.D in Economics, knew something
about TVA because he had worked there, one of the
bestrounded Hydro people in Canada; and they fired
him for their crassgutter political purposes and put on
in place one of the henchmen who used to be a
member of thisHouse, and a not terribly distinguished
one at that and made out of that a pure crass political
appointment.

So don't talk to me about the Cherniacks of this
world orcompare them in any way tothe Kris Krisjan-
sons of this world. The only thing those two gentle-
men have in common is that they are both warm and
breathing and beyond that, in terms of competency,
Kris Krisjanson is miles ahead, yet they fired him. As
some others have said, the distinction of competency
is lost on some of the members opposite, so one
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wastes the time of the House in arguing competency
as opposed to political patronage which was and is
their main motivation with respect to Manitoba Hydro,
the largest Crown corporation that this province has
control over and one to which they use as sort of an
upper chamber or senate for their politicalretirees for
whom they feel they have some political debt to pay
off. So much for their concern about Manitoba Hydro.

Sodon'ttalk to me about opinions from the man that
you fired as the Deputy Chairman of Hydro because
we know what a crass gutter opinion the members of
this government have toward competent people who
were doing apublic service and who werereplaced by
their patronage appointments. If more needs to be
said, | am quite capable of saying it and saying it all
evening.

Now, Mr. Chairman, on the question of Tantalum,
the First Minister stands up in the House and blithely
says that the Government of Manitoba lost money for
the people of Manitoba because back in 1978-79,
whenever the time sequence was, the Government of
Manitobachosenotto take up an optionthatithadon
the Tantalum Mine. | don’t have all ofthe documenta-
tion although it's obtainable and perhaps by the time
theseEstimatesareconcluded becausetheymay well
go on, faced with the kind of misstatements that we
are getting from across the way. That documentation
is available; it's equally available to my honourable
friends if they wish to look at it.

The one factor that | do remember when that deci-
sion had to be made, and it was a serious decision that
had to be made by government in that time as to
whether the government would exercise its option
withrespecttoafurther 25 percentequity interestthat
it could take in the Tantalum Mine. The one matter
that stands out in my recollection - and it's only in my
recollection - and I'll attempt to fortify that recollec-
tion with the documentation that is available, Mr.
Chairman, to both of us, both the First Minister and
myself. Itwasthis: thatif the government wereto use
the taxpayers’ dollars and that's what we're talking
about - let's not talk in this euphemistic way that
socialists do about the government taking it up or the
people buying it - it was the government acting as
trustee for the taxpayers to make a further investment
in Tantalum Mines.

My recollection, Mr. Chairman, subject to correc-
tion, is that the effort of that mine at that time was
going to be involved largely in the United States of
America; that there was going to be an exploration
program of some size in the United States of America
and that there were going to be investments of some
size to be made in the United States of America.

Heaven knows, nobody in our government has any
ideological hang-ups or paranoia about the USA, as
are apparent from the NDP every once in awhile, Rea-
gan’'s economic madness and other terms that we
hear from the First Minister only when he is speaking
by the way in Canada, notwhenhespeaksintheNapa
Valley in California. He didn’t talk about Reagan's
economic madness in the Napa Valley, but he does
that very bravely up here when he scuttles up back
over the border.

Mr. Chairman, the point is this, that at that time
whenthedecision hadtobemadeastowhetherornot
the Government of Manitoba acting as trustee for the
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taxpayers should take up a further 25 percent, in our
judgment the investments that were goingtobemade
by that mine out of country were not such as we
should be pledging on behalf of the taxpayers of
Manitoba.

Somebody once said, somebody brighter than the
First Minister and brighter than me, that if the people
of Manitobaorifthe taxpayers of any province wantto
becomeinvolved in oil exploration or mining explora-
tion in this free country that we have, they can go
down tothe stock market and pledge their money any
time voluntarily. Isn’t that one of the great things
about our free entrepreneurial system? But for the
governmentto do it compulsorily on behalf of willing
orunwilling taxpayersis anotherkettleoffish,and we
made the determination after some consideration of
all the pros and cons involved and without any of the
paranoic hang-ups that my honourable friends have
about the necessity of government not only being
partners, butbeingmain controllersofindustry, thatit
was in the public interest at that time with the facts
that we knew that we should let that option be taken
up by other people who have the secondary option.

We don't look back on that decision atall, because
in fact, Mr. Chairman, | can guarantee the First Minis-
ter that any company —(Interjection)— well, | will
state a generalization to which there are always
exceptions, but as a generalization, companies in
which governments - never mind foolhardy govern-
ments of the NDP, reasonable governments or what-
ever - but governments and enterprise in the competi-
tive field in which governments have a controlling
interest usually do not measure up and don’'t make
profits. Now therearealways exceptions. | amthe first
to admit that. —(Interjection)—

Sask Potash on an accounting basis without paying
any taxes in Saskatchewan, if my honourable friend
wantsto impute thetaxesthat Sask Potash should be
paying and that's the example he gives of a well-run
Crown corporation, let him impute to the Balance
Sheet of Sask Potash the taxation that it would be
paying if it were a private entrepreneur and he’'ll find
outwhattheprofitstatement of Sask Potashwouldbe
against the debt that it presently has, and similarly,
Mr. Chairman - well, | am just too digressed because
by honourable friend reminded me of a point.

We allowed when we put back on to the market
Crownleasesalesin Manitoba for oil one of the com-
panies that came in and bid onthem, and bid on afew
of them successfully as the First Minister mentioned
last evening, was SaskOil which is a creature of the
Government of Saskatchewan, a Crown corporation.
Wedidn't prohibit SaskOil from coming into Manitoba
atall; wesaidfine, if they'rethe highest bidder they get
it, but then down the line a question came before us
and | think it's a question that is still unresolved
because | don't think it was resolved in our time.
Should SaskOil pay corporate taxes in Manitoba? The
answer clearly, | think on the face of it in terms of the
taxpayers of Manitoba, isyes, why shouldn'tthey pay
taxes in Manitoba?

Soperhapswhen my honourable friend gets around
to making some answers, he will tell us whether that
problem has been resolved within the Finance
Department of the Government of Manitoba and
whether, as equity wouldseem to indicate or dictate,
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SaskOil should, the same as Omega, the same as all
the other oil companies that are competing with Sas-
kOil and bidding for these oil leases, be paying corpo-
rate taxation in Manitoba.

If my honourable friends have resolved that ques-
tion in favour of the taxpayers of Manitoba, | would be
quite happy to hear it because my honourable friends’
example about Sask Potash brings to mind that Sask
Potash doesn't pay taxes in Saskatchewan and, you
know, give me a company which doesn't have to pay
provincial and federal taxes and | will show you a
company that has a better balance sheet, strangely
enough, and a better profit and loss statement than a
company that does have to pay taxes. Now that may
come as a stroke of new information to the First Minis-
ter, but itisacommon parlance and common informa-
tion to anybody who is in the business world.

Sure, you free up a company from the obligation of
paying any governmental taxes and the the Crown
corp’s. P and L statement looks great, but stack itin
with its competitors and remember SaskOQilisin Mani-
tobaas a competitor, competing with companies that
pay their taxes in this province and elsewhereand pay
their taxes to the Federal Government. When you
impute those taxes to Crown corps such as SaskOil,
then you come up with a different position in terms of
their alleged profitability and | realize that this kind of
cold steel logic doesn't find too much of awarm recep-
tion across the way but Mr. Chairman, that's the way
the world operates. Manitoba is a little oasis of social-
ism and the rest of Canada and the real world out there
operates in terms of who pays taxes.

So perhaps my honourable friend after that digres-
sion can tell us whether SaskOil is going to be asked,
as it should be, to pay taxes in the Province of Mani-
toba on an equal equitable competitive basis with
those companieswithwhich it competes for Manitoba
oilleases, which the Minister of Mines says heis assur-
ing all of the oil companies that they will continue to
have and a policy which his party once denigrated,
putting Crown leases back on sale was another
resource giveaway that the NDP prior to 1981 talked
about ad nauseam. Now when they came into office,
they say, as | pointed out last evening, that's a good
policy and we want to run around, as the Minister is
doing, reassuring the oil interests in Alberta that we
are not such bad socialists as our election material
would lead them to believe, but we are really a bunch
of good fellows and we want to keep them here in
Manitoba even though, Mr. Chairman, someoftheoil
results thatwearefinding today arearesult of seismo-
logical agreements that were entered into | think a
year, a year-and-a-half or so ago, for which my hon-
ourable friends can take all the credit they wish
becausewe, the oil companies andthe peopleinvolved
in the area know where the stimulation came from. It
came from ending a blind ostrich-like policy of alleged
resource development by the NDP priorto 1977 which
saw oil development dry up in this province.

So | am not going to talk any more about resource
giveaways of that sort. | tell my honourable friend and
| will get the documentation as to what motivated us
with respect to Tantalum. | told him this afternoon
what motivated us with respect to Trout Lake, that
Manitoba Mineral Resources were given the mandate
to work out the best deal they could and that as
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recently as last Thursday, the representative of Mani-
toba Mineral Resources said it wasthe best deal that
couldbe worked outand we didn'tlose. The people of
Manitoba didn't lose 76 million as the Leader of the
Opposition went around this province wildly alleging
during the election campaign. All he has to do, Mr.
Chairman, is read the transcript of the evidence given
beforethe Public Utilities Committee of last Thursday
andhe will find out the truth of that statement. So, Mr.
Chairman, we don't need any Digger O'Dell lecture
from the First Minister tonight about how goodness is
going to overcome all of the problems and so on.

This government gotitself into a problem by virtue
of its pigheadedness with respect to saying that it
would not under any circumstances sell a portion of
the Limestone generating plant to Alcan. Okay, that's
fauit No. 1. We are hearing tonight | think, subject to
confirmation by the First Minister, the first ray of real
hope that this government has abandoned its pigh-
eadedness and its election rhetoric and is saying to
Alcan, yes, we are prepared to sell you a portion of
Limestone because that in turn engages our interest
about the buy-back at the end of 35 years. | put as a
footnote tothat comment of course that the buy-back
attheend of 35yearsisimportant, butwereally would
hope, | would think from this vantage point, that atthe
end of 35 years Alcan would see fit to continue its
operations in Manitoba and that the buy-back provi-
sion subject to arbitration and all of the usual clauses
thatlawyers put into these things would nothave tobe
actedupon, because once having got Alcan here, we
would want to keep it here for the benefit of future
generations of Manitobans.

So we have a concern, had a concern, have a con-
tinuing concern about buy back. Wedetect, however,
aslight scintillaof hope that if my honourable friend's
preoccupation with buy-back presupposes they are
ready to sell, then perhaps we'reback on track again
in terms of developing Alcan and | would like that
simple confirmation from the First Minister that it is
the case.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, again the
Leader of the Opposition appears to have ignored the
information that hereceived that Alcan has ceased its
precondition that ownership would be a necessity. So,
Mr. Deputy Chairman, if indeed the Leader of the
Oppositionis suggesting the government has changed
its position, equally is true the case with Alcan, that
has dropped any precondition in regard to the discus-
sions pertaining to the ownership of the plant and the
date is January 29, 1982 - the statement issued by
Alcan.

| would trust that the Leader of the Opposition is not
suggesting that Alcan would make one statement on
January 29th and would indeed not be forthright. Is
the Leader of the Opposition suggesting that Alcan
has changed its understanding and position that it
arrived atinsofar as the joint review? | am not. It's very
clear, Mr. Deputy Chairman, that both the government
and Alcan have entered into the joint review in good
faith without precondition; that has been announced
by both parties together. | don't understand really the
confusion that appears to exist on the part of the
Leader of the Opposition in this regard.
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HON. S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, | can assure the Hon-
ourable First Minister that there is no confusion on
this side of the House. The confusion seems toreside,
as usual, on the government side of the House.

Yes or no, have they agreed because of their review
of this matter, because of the advice they've had from
Hydro, because of the return of common sense to
some of their ranks, at least, that it is in the public
interest for the Government of Manitoba to be nego-
tiating for the partial sale of Limestone to Alcan. Have
they agreed that is in the interest of Manitobans and
does that account for the fact they are now preoccu-
pied with buy-back?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, again, as |
indicated a few moments ago, both the government
and Alcan haveproceeded with a joint review without
precondition. | don'tknow how more clearly it can be
established than that.

If the Leader ofthe Opposition would check some of
the further information he has in respect to Alcan, he
would find that in some countries of the world there
are contracts rather than ownership arrangements
and also, other aluminum companies have indicated
otherwise.

HON.S.LYON: Mr.Chairman,we'reinterested in get-
ting an aluminum smelter that will provide the thou-
sands of jobs that | detailed to the First Minister this
afternoon. Thefactthat | findit passing strangeisthat
neither he nor his Minister of Mines and Energy, nor
indeed his Minister of Economic Development who
should be the one primarily concerned, norindeed his
Minister of Labour, faced with the highest unemploy-
ment rates in this province since the end of the war,
are concerned about the thousands of jobsthat can be
generated if this government will just get off its ideo-
logical high horse and start negotiating in good faith
with Alcan on the basis with which they agreed to
cometo Manitobaandthatwasthattheybeallowedto
purchase part of the generating station for security of
supply. We didn't find any ideological, philosophical
or other hang-up about that. Why do my honourable
friends find it?

| have given my honourable friend the opportunity
because it seems to be the message that he wants to
leave. I've given him the opportunity to use whatever
candour and forthrightness he hasto tell thiscommit-
tee and to tell the people of Manitoba that he is pre-
pared to negotiate on the original basis and that
indeed in turn accounts for the preoccupation of him-
self and his government, legitimate as it may be, for
the terms of the buy-back. | can’timagine why thereis
any preoccupation about buy-back if my honourable
friends don't intend to sell something in the first place.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, | don't
know justhow much clearer one can makeiit. It should
be crystal clear to the Leader of the Opposition. The
jointreview - each'party has agreed to examine alter-
native arrangements, means, that might be available
in order to provide the substantive requirements that
Alcan has pertaining to Hydro. Mr. Deputy Chair-
man, it's also interesting that the Minister has had
opportunity to discuss with other aluminum compan-
ies potential development in Manitoba and have indi-
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cated very clearly that ownershipis not a precondition.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, | wonder why the Leader of
the Opposition is so anxious to negotiate on behalf of
Alcaninthis Chamber. Mr. Deputy Chairman, thereis
ajointreviewthatisunder way. Therearerepresenta-
tives that are negotiating and discussing with Alcan
suitable and satisfactory terms and I'm not aware of
Alcan asking for any assistance from the Leader of the
Opposition in negotiating on their behalf. Why does
the Leader of the Opposition not demonstrate ade-
quate confidence in the discussions that are proceed-
ing now in good faith and constructively towards
ascertaining whether or not there are alternative
means of providing for the substantive acquisition
needsofAlcan.Letthenegotiationstakeplace. | don't
think that Alcan is urging or asking or pleading with
anybody else to negotiate on their behalf.

The concerns ofthe Leader of the Opposition ought
to be, yes, certainly to obtain the location of Alcanin
Manitoba. | understand his desire in that respect, but
secondly, the Leader of the Opposition should be
expressing an equal concernthatwhatevertermsare
negotiated are terms that satisfactorily meet the con-
cerns of Manitobans; thatis not the message. With all
duerespecttothe Leader of the Oppositionthiseven-
ing, | think my colleagues on this side and | would
think mostManitobanslisteningto this debate are not
receiving that kind of message from the Leader of the
Opposition. He appears to be more anxious in nego-
tiating on behalf of Alcan than negotiating a satisfac-
toy transaction for Manitobans.

HON. S. LYON: Well, Mr. Chairman, | would very
much regretif it werethe case, that | would have left
the impression upon the very impressionable mind of
the First Minister that | was heretryingto negotiate for
Alcan. | am here trying to negotiate for the people of
Manitoba because | don't think that the present Gov-
ernment of Manitoba is negotiating for the people of
Manitoba. It's negotiating for the socialist party of the
world. It's negotiating because it's got some funny
ideological ideas about the sale of a part of a power
plant to a company that is willing to come into Mani-
tobaforthe first time in the history of this province.

We heard an unlearned contribution from the
Member for EImwood this afternoon to the effect that
the important part of the deal was the signing. Of
course, it's the important part of the deal, but the
pre-important part of the deal, as | said earlier this
afternoon, is to get the company here to negotiate in
the first place and that was accomplished in the pre-
vious four years; something my honourable friends
couldn’'t have done because their business negotia-
tions thus farhaven’teven attractedflies,letalonereal
operations in Manitoba.

All I'm saying to the First Minister is that 1 feel the
necessity and so does this Opposition to speak on
behalf of the people of Manitoba who are being
deprived of a once in a lifetime opportunity to getan
aluminum smelting plant in Manitoba because the
present government is fumbling the ball. My honour-
able friend had the full opportunity on how many
occasions this afternoon and tonight tosay no, we're
not fumbling the ball; we've got these negotiations
back on track. We have abandoned our silly socialist
rhetoric from the election campaign. We are prepared
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to deal in terms of the preconditions that were estab-
lished some time ago about purchase of part of the
plantto the benefit of the ratepayers of Manitoba and
thereby we can give some glimmer of hope to the
people of Manitoba that as and when it becomes eco-
nomic for Alcan to have another plant in Manitoba,
that plant will come to Manitoba and not to its two
competitors, B.C. or Quebec, where in many ways it
would be easier for that company to build.

So I'm making no brief, Mr. Chairman, on behalf of
Alcan; they can look after themselves, and | daresay
that with the present negotiating team, they can more
than look after themselves. | make a brief on behalf of
the people of Manitoba who need this plant in Mani-
toba, andIsaytomy honourablefriendthathe'sgota
sworn responsibility to act in the public interest, not
justactaccordingtotherhetoric ofthe NDP. He hasto
serve a wider and broader constituency now, not the
aberrational minds thatserve at the centre of his party.
He has to serve all of the people of Manitoba and he
has to serve the people of Manitoba who are wanting
and expectingthatan aluminum plantcan be brought
to Manitoba if negotiations in good faith, untram-
meled by the kind of ridiculous preconditions that my
honourable friends put in place, if those negotiations
in good faith can be carriedon, and so | speak tonight
forthepeopleofManitoba. My honourable friend may
not like that, because he listens perhaps too often to
the central party apparatus, the apparatchiks of his
party. He listens too often to them without realizing
that the people out there, the people of Manitoba,
don't give a particular damn about his ideology; they
wanthim to get on with the job of negotiating asound
dealforthe peopleofthisprovinceforgenerations yet
to come.

Now in that regard, Mr. Chairman, there was some
little difference of opinion this afternoon and some
discussion about TroutLake. | said at that time that |
was prepared to leave the discussion of Trout Lake
until such time as we had an opportunity to see the
Hansard from the Mineral Resources Corporation
hearings that took place before the Public Utilities
Board on the 3rd of June, 1982, Thursday last |
believe. Throughthe kind co-operation of the Speaker
and Hansard office, we've been able to get a copy of
that transcript tonight. While | admit | haven't had an
opportunity to go through all parts of it, | do want to
read selected parts of it to the First Minister and these
are freely available toanybody. My honourable friends
seem to shy away from the facts. They like to give their
own rhetorical version of what happened, particularly
the Minister of Mines and Energy, but wherever possi-
ble, | think we should stick with the facts as the
reports.

My honourable friend said in one of his earlier dec-
lamations during the election campaign, justtorefresh
everyone's memory, that when he was in Flin Flon on
the 21st of October, 1981, Pawley saidthe Trout Lake
project represents “a $76 million hole in Manitobans'
pockets.” He said, “The profits from the 20 percent
share could reach 90 million, but the province sold it
for 14 million. It's giveaways like Trout Lake which
weaken the Manitoba economy; they turn the devel-
opment of our economy over to multinational corpo-
rations, instead of allowing room for healthy joint ven-
tures between public and private corporations. They
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leave Manitoba at the mercy of those corporations’
international priorities.” he said, and on and on and
on.

I'm provided just conveniently with one of the ads
thatthe New Democratic Party ran during the election
campaign: The Conservatives will give away any-
thing to be re-elected. In fact, they're willing to give
away Manitoba. Here's the part that says, “Would you
give away 90 million for only 14 million?” This is the
full page ad that was run on Friday, October 16th by
the New Democrats, the socialists running for office;
they would say anything. Here's what they said the
Conservative Governmentdid: “They sold closeto 50
percent of your shares in the Trout Lake Copper
Mines forlessthan $14 million. The potential profiton
those shares could reach $90 million. That's money
that could have built more nursinghomes orimproved
health care research; that's money that could have
benefited the future of all Manitobans,” and on and on
itgoes. There's a clear statement; it follows upon the
rhetoric of the Leader of the Opposition, as he then
was, when he spoke on October 21st.

Well, Mr. Chairman, | am going to read something
that willmakemyhonourable friend twistinthewinda
little bit because it's about time that he listened to a
few facts rather than to some of the rhetoric upon
which he's been feeding for such a long time. Mr.
Chairman, let me read from last Thursday's Public
Utilities Committee Report. This was Mr. Wright of
Manitoba Mineral Corporations who was giving evi-
dence before the Public Utilities Committee of this
Legislature on Thursday last.

Mr. Ransom said - and | am reading from page 3 of
the unedited version of Hansard - “Do you recall, Mr.
Wright, any constraints that were placed upon Mani-
toba Mineral Resources in negotiating arrangements
over Trout Lake? Were you simply asked to make the
bestdealthatyou could for ManitobaMineral Resour-
ces and for the people of Manitoba?

“MR. WRIGHT: The negotiations were undertaken
under an omnibus agreementbetweenManitoba Min-
eral and the province which gave Manitoba Mineral a
free hand to negotiate the'deal. The Minister was kept
informed, but we have got no feedback on that.”

Then, I carryon. | skip a couple of paragraphs. “MR.
RANSOM: | believe Mr. Wright said that the guiding
principle there was that they did not want to accept
any arrangement that would be less advantageous
than having Manitoba Mineral and Granges on their
own. Isthat a correct understanding?

“MR. WRIGHT: That's correct.

“MR. RANSOM: Now, with the prospect of produc-
tion actually beginning within a couple of months, |
wonder now how you view the arrangements that
were made, because | think that Mr. Wright is aware,
as | am sure all the committee members are, that it has
been alleged that this was a bad deal for Manitoba or
for Manitoba Mineral Resources, that it involved a
needless giveaway of millions of dollars worth of
return to the province. | am just wondering now, even
with the benefit of a couple of years of hindsight,
whether you, Mr. Wright, whether the Manitoba Min-
eral Resources still feels thatthis was a good deal for
Manitoba Mineral Resources to make from a financial
point of view? Clearly, at the time it was negotiated,
you felt that it was a good deal to make, that it was
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better to make this deal than to go it on your own.
Would that still be your feeling?

“MR. WRIGHT: Thatwas, atthe time ofthe negotia-
tion, and has been right through until now the same
feeling that it was a good deal to make. | think that
events have probably reinforced it in the sense, as you
are probably all well aware” - all except some in this
House | add by way of footnote - ““as you were proba-
bly allwellaware,that the metalshave depressed and
Hudson Bay has taken the upfront risk of approxi-
mately $28 million to bring the mine to a 50 percent
levelof production, just as metal marketshave goneto
hell in a handcart.”

Then Mr. Wright and Mr. Ransom continue on with
respect tothematters of discussion on Trout Lake, on
whichthelLeader of the Opposition alleged in his big
fullpage ad that we have lost 76 million. Hereis what
Mr. Wright says on page 4.

“MR. RANSOM: At today’s prices then, is the mine
expected to be making any return at those prices?
What would be regarded as a break even price in
today's situation?

“MR.WRIGHT: Atthecostthatwe wereforecasting
last November and using current metal prices, it
looked that the mine could lose between 200,000 and
300,000 a month. However, Hudson Bay has gone
back at theirinstigation andtakenalookatthebudget
for the balance of the year and feel if they compile
their operating costs and defer some of the develop-
ment costs and it looks now that it could be close to a
break-even. However, the job is not yet complete and
when the analysis was made, they used average ore
grades and we are now going back and using whatwe
actually anticipate to mine during the balance of the
year, and we expect to have the numbers by the mid-
dle of the month.”

Now, Mr. Chairman, Mr. First Minister, will you still
stand up in this House and tell this House, as you did
inyourstatementtothe peopleof Flin Flononthe21st
of October, that Trout Lake represents a $76 million
hole in Manitoban’s pockets and thatitwasn’ta good
deal for Manitobans, when the very working officials
who are still in place at Manitoba Mineral Resources
say it was the best deal not only then, but in view of
hindsight and everything else? Is the First Minister
goingtostand beside his falsestatementofthe 21st of
October, 1981? Is he going to stand beside this
huffery adthatheranto wean votes from the people of
Manitoba which also contains the same misstatement,
oris he going to pay attention to Mr. Wright who told
the truth before the Utilities and Resources Commit-
tee the other morning, orindeed is he goingto fire Mr.
Wright?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, | want to
assure Manitobans that this government, unlike the
previous government, does not head up witch hunts of
civil servants. It doesn’t intend to instigate expensive
Royal Commissions as did the previous government,
because there was a disagreement pertaining to pol-
icy between ourselves and particular officials. We do
not intend to fire any officials.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, thereis adifference between
examining the market as of 1982 in relationship to the
deal that was struck and looking at the long term. We
will see what occurs over a 10-year period. The 1982
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situation is an abnormal situation by way of copper
prices. | suspect,aslongaswe cancometo grips with
Reaganomics, thatthe present recession will not be
with us too much longer. We will see over a 10-year
period, Mr. Deputy Chairman, whether the Leader of
the Opposition or the government on this side is
indeed correct.

Mr. Chairman, talking about election material, |
have a copy of a bulletin that was issued by the Con-
servative Party called “Economic Development in
Manitoba, the P.C. Years, 1978 On,"” and a quotation
fromthen Premier Sterling Lyon Budget Debate, May,
1981, “No people in Canada arebetterplacedthanthe
people of Manitobato take advantage of the opportun-
ities that are and will continue to be available to us.”

In thedocumentitself, there is reference, in view of
the discussion that we had this afternoon, to Potash
Mine and Refinery. | would like to read the quotation
from the Conservative election material distributed
during the campaign and prior to the campaign, it is
my understanding. “Potash Mine and Refinery, $1 bil-
liondevelopment in Western Canadato startin 1981" -
not may start in 1981 - “to start in 1981; 500 full-time
jobs and 350 indirect permanent jobs as a result of
economic spin-off benefits. In addition, during peak
construction periods, there will be another 1,000
jobs.”

Mr. Deputy Chairman, the comment is, we'll startin
1981, not may or possibly will start, or if indeed the
interim agreement or the preliminary agreement is
satisfactorily completed, we'll be able to initiate con-
struction pertaining to the Potash Mine and Refinery.
No, there are no caveats at all in the Conservative
Party material. The quote is very clear cut, “$1 billion
development Manitobans in Western Manitoba to
start in 1981.” That is the statement. That's a state-
mentthat was circulated to thousands of Manitobans,
representing to thousands of Manitobans that the
Potash plant would commence in 1981.

Mr. Chairman, there was a great deal of ado this
afternoon about the prospectus and about alleged
misstatements in the prospectus in relationship to
election material. Mr. Deputy Chairman, we don't
have to look very far to discover where the misstate-
ments are in the Conservative election material dis-
tributed in 1981.

HON.S.LYON: Mr.Chairman, we were talking about
TroutLakeandljustwantedtohavethebenefitofthe
reflections of the First Minister on his statement that
$76 million was lost and on the statement of Mr.
Wright of Manitoba Mineral Resources that Manitoba
Mineral Resources made the bestdeal for the people
of Manitoba, not only at the time they made it, but in
terms of hindsight. Does he share that view or not?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, unfortu-
nately the Leader of the Opposition apparently didn’t
hearmy earlierremarks, thereferences inrespecttoa
10-year period, their ups and downs pertaining to the
copper industry. | am not basing any finding on the
assumption that copper prices will continue to be as
low until 1989 or 1990 as they are indeed in the year
1982.Based uponthe copper pricesthatwe enjoyeda
few months ago continuing on to 1990, that indeed
would bethecase. Unfortunately, withthe short term
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recession, there is an abnormal situation. Mr. Deputy
Chairman, I'm sure that Mr. Wright, in defence of Mr.
Wright's statement, is reflecting upon the transaction
relating to 1982 copper prices.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, | can only draw the
conclusion, and ifI'mincorrect, the First Ministeris of
course quite free to correct me, that the First Minister
is saying the statements that | made in 1981 - and |
remember making them before that - about Trout
Lake are true, notwithstanding the fact that | can't
substantiate them. The statements made by Manitoba
Mineral Resources, the officials who still serve the
Government of Manitoba, are wrong. Now, if my hon-
ourable friend wants to put it in another way, let him

say so. If they're wrong, what's he going to do about
it?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, | don't
know whether I'm repeating myself again and what
the Leader of the Opposition expects by way of
response. Mr. Wright and those working with him are
obviously making theirjudgment. Wedon'tagree with
that judgment and we certainly don't intend to fire
anyone. | assume that it is ajudgment that's made by
them in good faith. They were involved in the original
transaction under a different administration. | would
berather surprised now if they disowned the transac-
tion that they were intimately involved in the prepara-
tion of.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, at the risk of repeti-
tion, | merely repeat what Mr. Wright said to the Com-
mittee the other day and I'm quoting from page 3 of
Hansard, “The negotiations were undertaken under
an omnibus agreement between Manitoba Mineral
and the province which gave Manitoba Mineral a free
hand to negotiate the deal. The Minister was kept
informed, but we've got no feedback on that.” Now, is
the First Minister saying that the Manitoba Mineral
Resources won't have a free hand under other agree-
ments that will be negotiated under his government,
because he'll move in and tell them what to do even
though it isn't in the interests of the people of
Manitoba?

Mr. Chairman, hearing no response from the First
Minister, we know that he's at a loss for words.

Having disposed of Trout Lake, Mr. Chairman, to, |
would think, the evident satisfaction of any reason-
able observer, let'smove on to the further examples of
this allegation of resource giveaways. We haven't
seen any in Alcan; we haven't seen any in potash; we
haven’'t seen any in Trout Lake. We have seen some
loose statements about some in Tantalum. | invite my
honourable friend now to come forward and tell us
where else were there resource giveaways about
which he declaimed at great length in his election
manifesto of only some six months ago. Name the
resource giveaways. We have gone through the large
project and so on; we have gone through Tantalum;
we have gone through Trout Lake. What scintilla of
evidence can the First Minister offer to substantiate
his statement to the people of Manitoba, his great full
page ads, his dividing up of the cake on T.V. and all of
the smart Madison Avenue tricks and so on that were
used to convince the people of Manitoba that their
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provincewas being given away?

Now, here we are, Mr. Chairman, in Committee.
Here we are face to face. Here we are with the facts
before us. Let the First Minister stand up in his place
tonight and give us some examples of the resource
giveaways that formed the basis of this $50,000, or
whatever it coststorun afullpagead in the Winnipeg
Free Press. Just give us some examples.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, we have
been dealing with many instances this afternoon and
into this evening. | don't know what is the point in
repeating. Obviously, the Leaderof the Opposition is
nottoo interested. Tantalum, the TroutLakesituation,
we've discussed to the extent that we are able to, the
concerns that we had pertaining tothe Alcan transac-
tion. The Leader of the Opposition loves tc wave
around the advertisement, but I think | should remind
the Leader of the Opposition that advertisement was
paid for by the New Democratic Party.

I recall politically slanted advertisements that were
appearing in the Winnipeg Free Press for three weeks
hand running just prior, and may have even spilled
into the 35-day election campaign, paid not by the
Progressive Conservative Party of Manitoba, but
unfortunately was paid for by the taxpayers of the
Province of Manitoba, such ads as, “Y ouaresitting on
apotofgold.”Weallrecallthat ad very well in prepara-
tion for the 1981 election campaign. Solet’snotlet the
First Minister indignantly wave around a New Demo-
cratic Party ad. At least, that ad was paid for by the
membership ofthe New Democratic Party, ratherthan
by the taxpayers of the Province of Manitoba as
indeed were the “sitting on a pot of gold” ad that the
former Minister of Economic Development was
responsible for.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, | am happy that the
First Ministertakes such pride in the factthat his party
paid for this full page ad which contained a whole
series of false statements. | am happy that they paid
forit because | wouldn't want the taxpayers of Mani-
toba to be responsible for that and | hope that he
remembers that when, at the next Session or whe-
never, hetriesto bring in any ill-guided legislation that
would causethe taxpayers of Manitoba ever to pay for
any political advertising on behalf of any party in
Manitoba, ever.

When in government, Mr. Chairman, you run ads
with respect to industrial benefits and other things
that can be of use to the people of Manitoba, just as
the former Schreyer Government had one of the larg-
estadvertising budgets of any of the Prairie Provinces
when it was in office some five years ago and ran ad
campaigns that went, in terms of taste, in terms of
factual information, well beyond anything that the
FirstMinister hasbeenableto pointattonightinterms
of our industrial benefits ads for the people of
Manitoba.

Mr.Chairman, | detect on the partof the First Minis-
ter areluctanceto carry on with this debate, because
hehasn'tbeenabletoadduce onescintilla of evidence
before this Committee over the last three days to sup-
port any of the allegations that he has been makingin
acrass electoral way, that there has beenanyresource
giveaway in Manitoba. The reason he can't adduce



Tuesday, 8 June, 1982

any evidence, Mr. Chairman, is that there haven't been
any resource giveaways, and if he would be honest
with himself and with this Committee, he would have
the candour and forthrightness to get up and say so.
He would stand up and say, yes, Mr. Chairman, | am a
big enough man to say | was wrong when | talked
about Trout Lake, because clearly what Mr. Wright
said was correct and | should accept the fact that |
made a statement based on no information. But, you
know, we don't expect to see two moons in the sky
tonight and we don’t expect the First Minister of the
province to admit that his election propaganda was
mistaken, as has been amply demonstrated over the
course of the past few days.

Soletmegive him alittlerest for afew moments. Let
him reflect upon his sins of omission and his sins of
commission and perhaps there will be repentance
before we're through with this Committee because at
the rate we're going, we're going to be here for some
time.

Let me reflect on another matter thatis of concern
to all of the people of Manitoba. I'm happy that the
Minister of Health's in his seat. We have had some
discussions with the Minister of Education, duringthe
course of her Estimates, with respect to the status of
funding for separate schools, independent schools in
Manitoba. | took some time in the course of that
debate, as indeed some of my colleagues have, to
point out to the Minister of Education that a rather
historicvotetook place in 1978 in Manitoba when The
Public Schools Act was amended, legalizing support
forindependent schools for the first time in the history
of this province, thereby putting behind all of us for all
time akind of schism, akind of situation in which there
had been evidences of, if not prejudice, some bigotry
that had existed for far too long in our province with
respect to the treatment accorded to independent
schools. Manitoba became, as | recall then, the last
province in Canada to accord statutory assistance to
separate schools and while it was being done on a
modest basis it was still done to put behind us that
rather sorry chapter in the history of our province.

As | wasreflecting upon that situation, | was asking
the Ministerwhetherornotin her Estimatestherewas
a general increase for the per capita grant for inde-
pendent schools in Manitoba. She replied, somewhat
in the manner of the First Minister, without answering
the question directly. She said, well, we've got extra
grants for transportation and extra grants for text and
so on. But what it boiled down to, after you scraped
away all of the fluff and foam surrounding the com-
ments, was that there was to be maintenance of the
same figure that was given last year for independent
schoolsinthis current fiscalyear.| made thepleathen
and | make the plea now to the First Minister that, in
accordance with the basic tenets of equity, his gov-
ernment should be looking at giving an increase
across the board to the independent schools in Mani-
toba at approximately the same level of increase as
was accorded to the public school system, because
those many thousands of young people, if those
schools had to close, would be thrown into the public
school system and basic equity demands nothing less
than that they be treated in an equitable way.

I reflected as well upon the fact that, when the
amending legislation was before the House and was
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voted upon in 1978, members of the New Democratic
Party of the House of that day who voted in favour of
ending that sorry chapter in the history of Manitoba
were the following: Messrs. Adam, Boyce, Desjar-
dins, Hanuschak, McBryde, Malinowski,and Schreyer.
The former Leader of the Opposition voted in favour
of statutory change. | note as well that the record
shows that those who voted against ending the dis-
criminatory practices againstindependent schools in
Manitoba in 1978 were the following members of the
then Opposition: Messrs. Barrow, Cherniack, Cowan,
Doern, Evans, Fox, Green, Jenkins, Parasiuk, Pawley,
and Uskiw.

Mr. Chairman, | make a —(Interjection)— the
Member for Radisson says, what about the members
on our side? | cantellthe honourable member that the
members on our side voted unanimously in favour of
the legislation, something that, Mr. Chairman, he,
being a representative of the French Canadian com-
munity in Manitoba, would do well to remember.

Now, Mr. Chairman, my suggestionto the First Min-
ister, and | say it as sincerely as possible, is this: Not-
withstanding the position that he took on a vote, and
I’m sure as a matter of conscience, on thisBillin 1978
when legalizing of support for private schools took
place and understanding that people can have posi-
tions in conscience that are opposed to this, | would
hope that his subjective view of that would not in any
way act as a retardant by his government to the con-
ferring of equity upon independent schools when it
comes to the grant structure. The Minister of Educa-
tion has offered some hope in that she said that, as
part of her overall study of education grants, she was
prepared to look at the question of independent
schools along with the question of funding for public
schools.

My suggestion tonight to the First Minister and |
would like to have on the record, if possible, his con-
firmation of this, that notwithstanding hisvotein 1978
we can have his undertaking that his government will
not regard this chapter in our history as being some-
thing upon which we should be retrenching, but
rather something upon which we should be building
and leavingbehindusthatsadhistory inthisprovince
forso many years. The bestway of exemplifying that,
in terms of a non-partisanapproachtoit, wouldbe for
the government to confer an increase on the per cap-
ita grant in roughly the same proportion that it is
giving increases to the public school system in
Manitoba.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Minister of Health.

HON. L. DESJARDINS: Mr. Chairman, | feel that |
have to take part in this debate. It has been on a few
occasions during the Session the First Minister from
his seat challenged me, and others have done the
same thing, to talk on aid to private schools. | don't
know what the subject was at the time but | feel that |
feel that | have to talk on that. | want to set therecord
straight.

To start with, | want to say to the Leader of the
Opposition that | could go back alittle later than that. |
can go back for all the years that | had fought for aid to
private school on this side and during the Roblin
years, and there wasn’t much of anything being done.
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| know that this was a very difficult task, but | know
that | can say that one of the main reasons why | did
support the Schreyer Government at the time, when |
did change party was one of thereasons, because that
was one of things that wasimportant to me. | feltthat|
had a better chance of having some change with that
government. | think that therecord will show the effort
that was made and | think that if the Leader of the
Opposition could have gone back and talked about
that vote, could have goneback when everything was
done to settle the question of aid to private school and
therewasavoteandwhenitwasfeltatthetime-and|
could tell you exactly the story that Schreyer at times
that he spoke in unguarded moments and he said
things that he'd regret or other people regretted.
That's happened. That happens to many of the great
leaders.

Now, one of the situations at the time was that if he
didn’t get aid to private schools that he would resign.
Of course, thenMr. Green was goingagainandhe was
quiteinterestedin being the Leader as he has been for
so many years and that was his chance and you
remember thatheleft Cabinet for a while to campaign.
Now, the Conservatives felt that it's a heck of a lot
easier in those days to defeat Green than Schreyer.
They pulled the whip and they had on a pretense that
wasn't the way to do it, That was definitely that we
were going to settle aid to private schools once and for
all. They pulled the whip -itwas supposedtobeafree
vote - and everybody but one, who refused and then
left the party - I'm talking about Gabe Gerard who left
the party —(Interjection)— that's right. He didn’t run
and that's exactly the reason why. That's right. | am
not saying that he resigned his seat; he just didn't
contest the election after that. He still remained a
Conservative, but he didn't go for that at all. He didn't
like the fact that they were trying to get him to vote
against something that he didn't believe.

There are some members here that really put politi-
cal expediency beforeanythingelse, because some of
the peoplewerevery much committedto aid to private
schools and | don't wantto startatthislate time, | think
there's an effort to complete these Estimates today,
but | remember, and if I'm challenged | can name
names of people that to this day areprobably regret-
ting it.

Okay, sowhat happened? Whathappenedwasthey
took advantage of everything that we could under
shared services and the shared services legislation
was there and we bent over backwards - I'm talking
aboutduring the Schreyer years - to help as much as
possible. We gave the benefit of the doubt to the pri-
vate schools and they did get some help.

Now, there was a change of government and some
people that challenged it and felt that what we had
done wasn't legal. That wasn't a challenge; that was
the opinion of some people. So then when that was
brought in, it was made quite clear, if you look at
Hansard, some of our people definitely are againstaid
to private schools. Green was the leader in those days.
He was still with our party. He was the leader and he
did everything to stop that vote. Some followed them.
He was leader of that group of people that were
against aid to private schools, definitely.
—(Interjection)— Yes, and then you would have no
aid to private schools at all if he wasthe leader, | can
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tell you that, and | would have changed parties again.
How do you like that? Thenyou can have more fun.
Okay. —(Interjection)— That's right. Parties don't
mean a damn thing to me if my principles are in jeo-
pardy and I'll stay with my principles, damn right. My
principleswon't change. If the parties wantto change,
that'sfine,and | don'tapologize for that at all, not a bit.

Sol'dliketohaveoneofyouatatime.lcan'tanswer
and | can'tlisten to everything that you're saying all at
once.

So the thing is that there was a vote to make sure,
and | supported that vote and | spoke in favour of it
very strongly. | did everything | could to getsome of
our people and some of our people did vote on it.
Somefeltthat there wasnoneedforitand all thatyou
did by thisto make sure,anditwasagreatthing todo,
you made sure thattherewould be no doubt thatitwas
legal, but there was no more help. You didn't do any-
thing different. Thenyou had a formula, butyou didn’'t
allow in that for inflation and this government has not
done anything but keep on with your policy.

| can tell you that is under review now and the
question of the newtaxis underreview and that willbe
looked at by the Cabinet. | can tell you that. | can
assurethe Members of this House thataslongas I'm a
Member of this House, | will not go along with some-
body that tries to remove any aid to private schools.
So if thatis any concern, | am not . . .

Onre of the main reasons | came into the House was
to fight for that. | did fight for that, and one of the
reasons why | changed partieswasthatmain reason. |
can assure you that with a few years to go in political
life, Iwon'truin it all by agreeing to anything totry to
do anything that's going to hurt aid to private schools
at all. So that is being considered, | have the assur-
ance of my leader and we are looking at the whole
thing. | thought that this should be placed on the
record at this time.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Leader of the
Opposition.

HON.S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, | think thatallmembers
of the House will be greatly heartened by thatinterjec-
tion by the Minister of Health with respect to hisinten-
tions, with respect to the government. Both, if | may
say so,insupportofthe propositionthatindependent
schools should receive acomparableincreasein their
per capita grant that the public schools receive,
number one; and secondly, as he volunteered, and |
think it's quite proper because we've already asked
about this question that independent schools should
be treated in the same equitable way thatthe govern-
ment is proposing totreat public schools with respect
to the payroll tax. | am happy to hear the Member for
St. Boniface make those statementstonight. |, forone,
welcome those statements by a member of the
government, because | think the Member for St. Boni-
face, as always, is speaking not only from his heart,
he’s speaking from personal conviction on this matter
and nobody, | don't think, would ever deny the hon-
ourable membertherecognition of the convictionand
the feeling that he has on this topic.

| make one minor amendment, historically, to the
honourable member’s recollection of what happened,
what he was trying to say and | think in perhaps an
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excess of trying to boil down the recollection of the
events. When the government in 1978 brought in the
Bill to legalize the previous ad hoc arrangement that
had been entered into by the Schreyer Government
with respect to a handful, only a handful, of school
divisions in Manitoba, the effect of legalizing it not
only cleared up the problem which had existed for
wellover80years, butitalsoconferred thatbenefit on
every independent school in Manitoba. | am sure that
my honourable friend wouldn’'t want to overlook the
factthatwasoneofthegreatbenefitsthatflowed from
that legislation for which, and he deserves full credit
along with his former leader and so on, he voted.

So I'm not here to pick any argument with him; I'm
notheretopickany argument with the FirstMinister. |
merely want to suggest from this side of the House, as
I've suggested before, that we've got that part of our
history behind us, thank God. We now have an equita-
ble system upon which independent schools can
operate in this province as they do right across this
country. Let's continue the flow of equity into that
system so that independent schools in Manitoba can
continue to receive per capita grants on a scale that
rises annually on roughly the same basis that we in
this Legislature vote aid for the public school system.
If my honourable friend is saying, as | heard him
clearly say becausehe's nota personto mince words
on a topic of this nature, if he is saying that he sup-
ports that and if he supports the idea that the inde-
pendent schools should have the same treatment as
public schools on the question of the payroll tax, then
Isaythat!l havenoargumentwith himatall. In fact,we
are brothers in arms with respect to that topic and |
thank him for his support tonight.

MR.DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Member for Radisson.

MR. G. LECUYER: Le Chef de I'Opposition tout a
I'heure, s’est levé pour dire dans des remarques
désobligeantes, que lereprésentantdu comtéde Rad-
isson devait se préoccuper plus particulierement en
tantquereprésentantdelacommunautéfrancophone
icienChambre, que moije devrais mepréoccuperdes
aspirations et des francophones ici dans cette cham-
bre, et bien moi je dis au Chef de I'Opposition que
premiérement: il n'y a pas une seule école privée
frangaise au Manitoba. Deuxiémement, je voudrais
aussi lui dire, que j'aimerais voir chez lui autant de
préoccupation pour reconnaitre etégaliserlesécoles
frangaises et les écoles d'immersion qu'il démontre
pour les écoles privées et indépendantes au Mani-
toba. Alors, s'il veut parler des acquis et de I'histoire et
de dire que ga c'est du passé et que maintenant nous
avons mis les choses 1a ou ils doivent étre, c'est-a-
dire, que nous reconnaissons dans les droits I'éduca-
tion frangaise au Manitoba, et bien moi je lui dis que
c'estluiquipratiqueunmanqued'équitabilitéicidans
cette chambre.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Leader of the
Opposition.

HON. S.LYON: Mr. Chairman, now to the First Minis-
ter, unless of course he wishes to make any comment
upon the separate school matter, | think that he
nodded and indicated that the Minister of Health was
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speaking on his behalf. | thank the Minister of Health
for thatvote of support and we take thatas meaning he
was speaking for the government.

Coming back to the resource giveaway situation,
Mr. Chairman, | have in front of me a statement by
Howard Pawley, Leader of the Manitoba New Demo-
cratic Party, dated October 14, 1981, for immediate
release. The heading of itis, “Time to Judge the Lyon
Record.” This is a release that was turned out by the
First Minister when he was the Leader of the Opposi-
tion. He was talking about resource giveaways and at
the bottom of the first page of this release, the First
Minister's statement read as follows, “Those same
communities have suffered an increase in unemploy-
ment due to the Lyon government.” He was speaking
about peoplein Seymourville and Manigotaganin the
earlier paragraph relating tohealth facilities. Then the
quote goes on, “In 1979, the Conservatives signed a
20-year contract with Abitibi. Dozens of local opera-
tors were cut off. It was the Conservatives first
resource giveaway.”

Mr. Chairman, | now refer the First Minister to
Hansard of Thursday, 18th March, 1982, and the ques-
tions that were being put to the Minister of Natural
Resources at that time. In the interests of time, |
believe it was Mr. Enns asked this question on page
583 of Hansard at the bottom of the first column,
halfway downthefirst column. I’'m notparaphrasing;
I'm reading only the question, “One particular con-
cern that was often expressed, both at the signing of
the agreement and has come up since the agreement
has been in effect, is that a number of private opera-
torsorindependent operators have been forced out of
business as a result of that agreement with Abitibi. |
wonder if the Minister could advise the number of
private or independent operators that have been
forcedout ofbusiness, ifindeed,there areany. Can he
give us some indication as to whether or notthatis a
legitimate concern?”

Then Mr. Mackling responds, “Yes, Mr. Chairman.
In respect, first of all, to the concern about the fire
suppression activities . . . “ That is not a germane
paragraph, I'll read it if someone wishes, but he
answers the second paragraph in these terms, still on
page 583, “In respect to the Abitibi Agreement, |
haven't personally yet made an evaluation of that, but
my staffindicatetomethatinrespecttotheconcerns
about individual woodcutters, those concerns about
their being displaced have not materialized, that the
system seems to be working very well without hard-
ship tothoseindividual cutters. Theirrightswerepro-
tected under the final arrangements.

“MR. ENNS: Just to be somewhat more specific,
the Minister then, cannot advise me of any particular
number of independent cutters that the department
has hadtoforceout of cuttingrights as a result of the
Abitibi Agreement?

“MR. MACKLING: My staff indicates to me that it
doesn't appear any quota-holder that had a quota
prior to the agreement has been forced out of timber
cutting or operation.”

Now, Mr. Chairman, very simply, my question to the
First Minister is this, does he still stand by the state-
ment that he made on October 14, 1981 to the effect
that in 1979 the Conservatives signed a 20-year con-
tract with Abitibi. Dozens of local operators were cut
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off. It was the Conservatives' first resource give away.
How does that statement stand up to the lights of fact?

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, | had the
opportunity to visit the communities involved of Sey-
mourville and Manigotagan and spoke to woodcutters
and to others that had been affected as a result of the
Abitibi Agreement. | wish the - oh, the Member for
Rupertsland is present - and, Mr. Deputy Chairman, |
do wish the Leader of the Opposition had visited some
of the communities that are involved and spoken to
some of the Indian people and some of the other
people in the various communities in the area.

| would prefer, Mr. Deputy Chairman - and | think
this is one of the problems sometimes with govern-
ments, is that sometimes we rely upon staff and that
may indeed have been an example there, rather than
visiting the communities and finding out advice from
the communities. |, certainly, by talking to the people -
and it's too bad the Leader of the Opposition when he
was Premier of the Province of Manitoba and the
former Resources Minister had not visited some of the
communities and spoken to some of the people that
had been affected by the agreement in question, the
Abitibi Agreement.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, it's certainly our intention to
review that agreement. It's my understanding that
agreement is presently being reviewed at the present
time. | would like the Member for Rupertsland, in
whose constituency this is, to speak from personal
knowledge of the communities and the people that
have been affected by way of that agreement.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: The Member for
Rupertsland.

MR. E. HARPER: Yes, like the Premiersaid, when he
came there last fall, wehadindications fromthecom-
munities that they were affected by the agreement
that was made by the previous government. What they
said was that the Abitibi Company decided as to how
many cords they should cut. These were the words
that they used was that they had about 7,000 cords of
wood and they were being cut down to about 3,000.
Whether or notthat'strue, butthat’'s whatthey said to
us.

Also, they were saying that they were imgorting
timber from Dryden and carryingittoPine Falls. Also,
they were selecting to a few individuals in the com-
munity of Manigotagan given toa company and then
they were selectively given timber cutting rights. Also,
they indicated to us at that time that they didn't have
the opportunity to have the say as to who is going to
have so many cords and they were sort of fighting as
to who is going to have the cutting rights as to how
many cords they should have, and it was sort of creat-
ing a chaos in the communities because the commun-
ities, asyou know, don'thavethatmany employment
opportunities. | believe that the timber cutting rights
goes as far north as just north of Berens River and
some of those communities, they want to establish
local sawmills for their own use. What has happened is
that in order for them to get some sort of timber cut-
ting rights, they have to approach Abitibi.

The casebefore, | believetheywere ableto approach
the government and apply for a permit surrounding
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the communities. They were able to initiate some sort
of local activities for themselves and produce some
lumber for theirown use. Those messages came clear
to us as we travelled in the area. | think that we have
one in Berens River. Pigeon River, | think is an opera-
tion there where Channel Area Loggers operate.
Thesekinds of activities | think should be made avail-
able; atleast the policies of this government should be
thatthe resourcesaroundthemshould be made avail-
able to the communities instead of relying on big
companies to provide some sort of employment
opportunities.

| think it's consistent with the kind of things that
Indian people want; they want to create some sort of
employment opportunities forthemselves and be able
to enjoy the same benefits as anybody else. | hope this
government will do something and | willseetoit,as a
member for that constituency and a representative of
that constituency, that | hope to change that policy.
Thank you.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, I'm sure we want to
thank the Member for Rupertsland for his personal
recollections of the areas of his constituency about
which he speaks. | took it from his words, however,
that what he was saying was that's what the people
said and he wasn't anymore than —(Interjection)—
No, Mr. Chairman, we don't need any interpretation
from the Member for Thompson about what goes on
intheHouse. Afterhe’'sbeen herealittlebitlonger,he
may be in a position to offer advice to some, even
though very few will take it.

Mr. Chairman, what| heard the Member for Ruperts-
land say and | appreciate what his interjection in the
debate was; at least that's what the people were say-
ing. What | read to the First Minister, however, is what
the staff are saying about people being moved out.
The staff are saying thatjust didn't happen, and where
the First Minister has been drawing a blank on alleged
resource giveaways, whether on Abitibi, Alcan, Potash
or whatever, what we are finding out, Mr. Chairman, is
that none of these things happened. None of them
happened atall. If my honourable friend hasn't got the
courtesy or the candour or the forthrightness to admit
tonight that he was making misstatements, then the
public of Manitoba will draw their own conclusions
baseduponwhattherealevidenceis, comingfrom his
own Ministers from his own staff.

We see too often, Mr. Chairman, in this House if |
may say so, much more often than ever I've witnessed
before in my experience in this House, Ministers
standing up and saying: but | don't care what's in the
report that | signed, that report was prepared before
we came into office, as though to say that the Civil
Service of this province somehow or other is giving
false statements to reports that Ministers sign. The
Minister of Resources stood up and was asked the
question very clearly on Hansard and |l justreaditinto
the record, I'm not going to repeat it again, whether or
not people had been forced out or closed out, as the
First Minister was alleging in his election. Dozens of
local operators were cut off; that was his term. The
staff of the Department of Resources, under his newly
appointed Deputy Minister, Mr. Carter, said that just
isn't so.

Sowe are, you know, searching out these examples
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of alleged resource giveaways and | want my honour-
able friend to continue to reflect upon any that he
thinks can come to mind, because we haven't found
oneyet. We are going to continue to search, to probe
and to find out from my honourable friend just how
much weight can be attached to some of these state-
ments, not only that he made during the election cam-
paign, but which he continues to make in this House.

Itwasonly whenwe broughtto his attention the fact
that his own prospectus said that the Hydro Board
under the previous NDP Government had cut off the
construction at Limestone, thatwe finally got them to
acknowledge the truth of that statement. Prior to that,
he was going about the province saying that the Con-
servatives cut it off because it served his electoral
partisan purposes. Well, that just isn't good enough,
Mr. Chairman, and we're going to make sure to the
extent that's possible, we are going togetto the bot-
tom of some of these statements. If it takes us until hell
freezes over, we're going to get to the bottom of some
of these statements and if not at this Session, we'll be
gettingtothe bottom of them atsucceeding Sessions.
We're going to be able to demonstrate just how frag-
mentary and just how much puffery there wastomany
of the fundamental statments made by the New
Democratic Party anditsLeaderwithrespecttopublic
affairs in Manitoba which hold no water at all, which
were misleading and which are calculated to cause
mischief among the peopleof Manitobabecause they
don't reflect the truth.

Now, Mr. Chairman, let'sgive my honourable friend
a little breather so he can reflect again on resource
giveaways and let me ask him a very simple question.
Oneof the firstacts that this governmenttook when it
came into office was to make a strong fundamental
decision that it was going to change the colour of the
licenceplatesin Manitoba fromred, white and blue to
red, white and black. Would the First Minister care to
tell us tonight why the licence plates had to be
changed from the traditional loyal colours of red,
white and blue which had been on our flag up until
1966 or whatever? We still regarded red, white and
blue as being good colours. The excuse given at the
timewas well, these are the colours used by the Con-
servative Party. They are also the colours that are
used by the Americans in the Star Spangled Banner;
they're the colours used in Great Britian in the Union
Jack; they're the colours used by many other coun-
tries around the world. Now, would my honourable
friend care to tell me, first of all, what was the deep
philosophical rationale that went into that fundamen-
tal decision: first of all, to change the colours of the
licence plates; and secondly, how much diditcostthe
people of Manitoba when this government made that
decision?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Mr. Premier.

HON. H. PAWLEY: Mr. Deputy Chairman, | want to
spend a few moments not talking about the colour of
licence plates because that isn't much of aconcern of
myself personally. | don't know why the Leader of the
Opposition is really so uptight about whether they're
red, white and blue or otherwise. I'm not going to get
uptight and get involved in any debate in respect to
that. It'srather clearthat the Leader of the Opposition
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is still biting very very much from the last election
campaign and wants torefight the election campaign
in the Chamber. We'll be delighted to discuss the
election campaign. —(Interjection)— well, | find it
rather difficult to deal with the interjections of the
Leader of the Opposition. | have tried to remain as
courteous as | can while he is speaking, but it is very
difficult without shoutingand I don'tintend to shout to
carry my voice above the voice of the Leader of the
Opposition. But, Mr. Deputy Chairman, what | do want
to deal with is - and | want to thank the Member for
Rupertsland for his comments and | believe that what
the Member for Rupertsland has demonstrated tonight
isadifferencein approach between two partiesin this
province.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, | want to make it very very
clear that decisions that are made, as indeed had been
the case by the previous government for four years
pertaining to Abitibi, pertainingto the allegations that
were raised by the previous Member for Rupertsland
that were documented time and time again in this
House in the Estimates of the Department of Natural
Resources, the former member, Mr. Harvey Bostrom,
never refuted by the then Minister of Natural Resour-
ces, indeed hold true as much now as they did for four
years. Mr. Deputy Chairman, | say to the members
across the way because they seem to view govern-
mentasworking in avacuum, listening only to: either
a) partisansupporters of that government, or b) listen-
ing only to the statements of staff advisers; that once
the staff say something and indeedthatwasthecasea
little earlier when reading Mr. Wright, as though that
finalized everything. There wasnolonger any debate,
because Mr. Wright confirmed something that had
been asked of him by the Leader of the Opposition.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, the present Member for
Rupertsland, | think, summedit up very verywell.The
resources within acommunity oughttobe availableto
the peoplesinthatcommunity. Mr. Deputy Chairman,
I think as a result of that statement by the Member for
Rupertsland, itdemonstrates why since 1969the New
Democratic Party thathassupported resources being
used by the peoples in the communities in Northern
Manitoba, why we have had good representation and
good support in Northern Manitoba and the record of
the party across the way has been abysmal in North-
ern Manitoba insofar as support.

Mr. Deputy Chairman, this entire matter of the
agreement pertaining to Abitibi in my view requires
review and itis my understandingindeed that a review
is taking place in regard to that agreement. Because,
Mr. Deputy Chairman, the people that we are respon-
sible to are notthe bureaucrats, not thestaffadvisers,
as much as they may betemptingto do their duty, but
the people that we are accountable to are the people
withinthe communities. Insofar as the question of the
Abitibi Agreement, ourconcernmustbeindeedtothe
people within the communties. Mr. Deputy Chairman,
in any court of law, the evidence is taken from those
that have had first hand experience in regard to deal-
ing with cutting rights, the unemployed that have
been laid off as a result of policies pertaining to the
agreement in question. Those are the folk that can tell
from first hand experience as to how it affected their
community, how it's affected their families. That's
why, Mr. Deputy Chairman, the need for review is
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self-evident pertaining to the Abitibi Agreement.

I regretthat duringfouryearsofthe previous admin-
istration - | doubtthat one of the members across the
waycanriseandsay,yes, | wasin Seymourville; | was
in Manigotagon, | met in the town hall with the people
of that community. Is there one acrossthe way? Can
the Leader of the Opposition tell me that he did, dur-
ing the four years of his stewardship in the Province of
Manitoba? Can the former Minister of Health tell me?
Can the former Minister of Economic Development
tell me? Can the Attorney-General, that they spoke to
the people within that region of Manitoba that we are
concerned in respect to this agreement? Can they?

Mr. Chairman, no, because whathas been betrayed
this evening is that members across the way would
sooner, working from this building and listening only
totheirkey advisers, withoutgoingintothe communi-
ties and ascertaining whether or not that advice is
accurateornot,areprepared tomakeadetermination
that can be detrimental to the hope within the
community.

So, Mr. Deputy Chairman, yes, there is afundamen-
tal difference. | believe that the Leader of the Opposi-
tion tonight - in fact, | am pleased that he raised this
examplethis evening-hasdemonstrated a fundamen-
tal example insofar as approach inregard to dealing
with the people of the Province of Manitoba, listening
to their concerns, attempting to deal with those con-
cerns on a first hand basis. Mr. Deputy Chairman, |
certainly intend to assure that there is a proper and
objective review taken pertaining to the Abitibi
Agreement.

HON. S. LYON: Mr. Chairman, the First Minister will
find no argument with me about the responsibility of
members of this House collectively to be acting on
behalf of the people of Manitoba and the people who
do business in Manitoba are just as much part of the
people of Manitoba asindividual citizensare. We have
tolook after the total welfare of all people in Manitoba.
He gets no argument from me about that. | merely
suggested, instead of trying to read a lecture on his
travel plans to the House, he may better have his
conversation with his Minister of Resources, Mr. Mac-
kling, who after all was the one who made the state-
ment which said that what the First Minister was pro-
phesying had taken place, just hadn’t taken place.

So, Mr. Chairman, | have no argument with the First
Minister. The First Minister appears to be accepting
thewordofthe Member for Rupertsland and | respect
his word; | respect his candour, the Member for
Rupertsland. | respect his candour for saying very
frankly, atleast thatis what the people said. The Minis-
ter of Resources gave the evidence that | have read to
the House and said, no, it didn't take place.

So my honourable friend has no argument on this
side of the House. He's got an argument as between
the Member for Rupertsland and his Minister of
Resources and the staff of the Department of Resour-
ces. | hope, for the sake of the sanity of people of
Northern Manitoba, that he can work out that dichot-
omy, if it's not a trichotomy, of opinion that exists
within his own caucus, because the information that
we had was to the same effect, that nobody had been
closed out of cutting operations in Northern Mani-
toba. That's what the staff confirmed to the Minister;
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that's what the Minister said in this House. So let the
First Minister talk to his Minister of Resources. Letthe
caucus of the NDP settle their own internal family
disputesin the caucusroom, notinthe Legislature. All
wedoisbringtothe attentionoftheHousethe factsas
they are spoken by the First Minister and by the Minis-
ter of Resources. My honourable friends will then
have to sort out which lily pad they are going to hop
onto.

Now, Mr. Chairman, | asked the First Minister a
serious question. What was the rationale for the
change in the licence plates’ colours, and what was
the cost to the people of Manitoba for that?

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN, A. Anstett: The Honour-
able Minister of Health.

HOM.L.DESJARDINS: Mr.Chairman, ! movethatthe
Committee rise.

MR. DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Committee rise.





